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Vision
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Sr LAM Kin Wing, Eddie, MH (Chairman)
MEBELREE - REHEZ(EF)

To be an excellent organization in offering a wide range of
compensations to patients with pneumoconiosis and/or
mesothelioma, providing quality rehabilitation care to the
patients for enhancing their physical condition, and, developing
and implementing preventive measures for striving to minimize
the occurrence of these diseases among the workforce in the
construction and quarry industries.
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MISSION
fon

To provide a platform for the compensation, rehabilitation MNAFEXKEEMREEE @ SEAMERTER
and prevention of pneumoconiosis and mesothelioma for the KHEKEBHNFHE @ EREREHREHTE <2
betterment of the patients, the workforce in the industries as & - BRATERFEREBT X E -

well as the society as a whole, we endeavor to fulfill the statutory

functions in a professional and caring manner through:

e utilizing effectively the resources collected from the e 1R R (I EE RN & R R B B () 1§

construction and quarry industries in accordance with By REEENAREBWAENER - B
the Pneumoconiosis and Mesothelioma (Compensation) W iE R BT & IEATE RUEkEL

Ordinance to fulfill our statutory functions;

e launching rehabilitation programmes to enhance the e HITERRTS - IRA B E /) S 821480
physical condition of the patients;

e implementing educational and publicity programmes to HERHERSEE  URSXREE -

raise the awareness of employers, workers, professionals EE BEEAITNEE  UETERARY
and trainees in the industries as well as the public at large iR eI TEY B - 32 15 B) h P9 N ok TR
on the prevention of the above diseases, and facilitate them B TAE

in strengthening prevention works;

e  building an occupational health culture among practitioners RERBVREREN XU
in the industries;

e providing medical examination programme for construction o  AEEETRIEHEMIRERT
workers;

° supporting researches relating to the prevention, treatment e TRE FMRRATER - AR RIEFRIEH
and rehabilitation of the above diseases; and B TIE &

e maintaining a team of quality, efficient and people-oriented HERF—SZUEERRNE R EOEK - 243

staff. AN BRI BRTE o

CODE OF ETHICS eSSl

° practising the principles of honesty, integrity, objectivity, BETHENSE  RETIE T5RE - T
impartiality, accountability, dedication, professionalism and RIE - AEET BEBTREEDE

diligence. B R A ©
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COMMITTEE ON FINANCE & ADMINISTRATION

Bl ¥5 I i3
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The Committee on Finance and Administration is responsible for
monitoring the finance, administration and investment affairs of
the Board. In 2024, the financial position of the Board remained
stable and healthy.

Total levy income in 2024 increased by 4.83% to $441.31 million
when compared with the value of $420.96 million in last year. The
levies from the public sector increased by 12.28% to $244.92
million, whereas that from the private sector decreased by 3.11%
to $196.28 million. On the other hand, levies from the quarry
industry decreased from $0.24 million to $0.10 million.

Interest rates from fixed deposits remained high throughout the
year. Excluding fair value gain on financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (Tracker Fund), total investment income
was $134.38 million, which showed an increase of $18.35 million
or 15.81% compared with $116.03 million of last year. The
interest income of bonds and fixed deposits increased by 16.03%
or $15.23 million to $110.25 million. Furthermore, the dividend
income increased from $21.02 million to $24.12 million in 2024.

On the total expenditure, it increased by 12.46% to $349.19
million. Total expenditure of compensations to patients with
pneumoconiosis and mesothelioma was $242.35 million,
representing an increase of 9.67% as compared with $220.98
million in 2023.

Moreover, a total of $69.62 million was spent for prevention,
research and rehabilitation, which was $7.93 million or 12.85%
more than 2023. The increase was partly due to the larger
number of rehabilitation exercises taken by patients in community
rehabilitation centres.

To sum up, $318.60 million or 91.24% of the total expenditure
of the Board were paid as compensation, medical examination,
research, prevention and rehabilitation for the benefit of patients
and workers.

Pneumoconiosis Compensation Fund Board Annual Report 2024
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COMMITTEE ON FINANCE & ADMINISTRATION

Besides, a total of $2.92 million was spent on the digitalization
project, maintenance and recurrent expenses of existing
information technology systems of the Board. Another sum of
$8.19 million was spent for renovation of office of the Board which
was capitalised as fixed assets.

The surplus of income over expenditure for the year was $276.05
million, which was $91.95 million or 49.95% more than the
previous year. The balance of accumulated fund as at end of the
year was $3,517.82 million.

Regarding the investment of reserves, about 85% of the surplus
funds would be placed on certificate of deposits, bonds and fixed
deposits at short to long-term fixed rates in order to ensure a
relatively stable interest income. The certificate of deposits and
bonds will be held to maturity, while the remaining 15% of the
surplus funds were invested in listed shares and the Tracker Fund
for dividend income and long-term investment purposes.

In June 2024, the Board submitted its annual report in 2023 for
tabling in the Legislative Council. The Estimates of Income and
Expenditure together with the Yearly Programme for 2025 were
also submitted in December 2024 for approval by the Government
in accordance with the provision of the Pneumoconiosis and
Mesothelioma (Compensation) Ordinance (PMCO).

As the authorised paying agent of the Pneumoconiosis Ex Gratia
Fund (“the Fund”), the Board presented the Fund’s interim and
final reports together with the financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2024 which were audited by the Director of
Audit and approved by the Government.

Finally, the Committee would like to thank Members for their
efforts and contributions in continuous monitoring the finance,
administration and investment affairs of the Board.
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Levy

The overall levy income in 2024 was increased by 4.83% to
$441.31 million. The private sector had a decrease of 3.11% to
$196.28 million (2023: $202.58 million). The public sector had
an increase of 12.28% to $244.92 million versus $218.14 million
in the previous year.

The Board recorded $14.18 million of levy income from MTR
projects, indicated an increase of 39.02% from the previous year
of $10.20 million. With only one quarry site operating in Hong
Kong, the levy income from quarry industry decreased from $0.24
million to $0.10 million.

The construction projects at Kai Tak Development and the Airport
Development scheme contributed levy income of $44.96 million,
an increase of $12.58 million from $32.38 million in 2023,
representing a rise of 38.85%. Levy income from projects in the
West Kowloon Cultural District decreased from $2.03 million to
$1.50 million, representing a drop of 26.11%.

Compensation

The number of new cases recorded in 2024 was 90, including 79
Silicosis, 8 Mesothelioma and 3 Asbestosis cases. The number of
patients receiving monthly compensation at year end decreased
from 1 379in 2023 to 1 370in 2024.

The total expenditure of compensation was $242.35 million,
representing an increase of 9.67% as compared with $220.98
million in 2023.

In 2024, five compensation items were paid at revised levels
following the resolution passed at the Legislative Council on 15
March 2023. They included the amount of monthly compensation
for pain, suffering and loss of amenities at $5,780, the amount of
compensation for bereavement and the minimum compensation
for death at $238,530, the maximum amount of funeral expenses
at $94,690 and the amount of monthly compensation for care and
attention at $5,930.

During the Annual Interview with our patients, the Board
conducted a survey on patients’ level of satisfaction on the
Compensation Services. The average score with “satisfied” or
“very satisfied” given by patients was 98 out of the total score of
100.

Lastly, the Committee sincerely thanks all the members for their
contributions in the areas of Levy and Compensation.

Pneumoconiosis Compensation Fund Board Annual Report 2024
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COMMITTEE ON RESEARCH

The Committee on Research is committed to sponsoring
promising and practical research projects through funding and
close collaboration with academics and industry stakeholders to
benefit patients and workers. The Committee is pleased to see
abundant achievements in 2024.

Research Funding and Projects

The total expenditure on research in 2024 was $5.30 million, an
increase of $1.49 million as compared with 2023.
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Types of projects BEER Number &
New projects approved AR GREE 9
New projects declined WA B 6
Projects completed SRk T8 B 3
Projects in progress HEITHIEE 10

To ensure funding is allotted to the most impactful research,
the Committee ensures rigorous scrutiny and meticulousness
in reviewing each project. This year, the Committee approved
nine projects focused on advancing diagnosis and slowing down
progression for pneumoconiosis and mesothelioma. We look
forward to the innovations of these projects in enhancing current
diagnostic and treatment approaches. Some notable research
projects are highlighted below:

New Projects Approved

1. This year, the Committee sponsored a project titled
“Territory-wide retrospective study on the prevalence of
long-term renal outcomes and the associated risk factors
among patients with mesothelioma”, conducted by Dr.
Kwok Wang Chun from the Department of Medicine, School
of Clinical Medicine, Li Ka Shing Faculty of Medicine, The
University of Hong Kong. Malignant mesothelioma is a rare
neoplasm associated with asbestos exposure. Common
treatments for mesothelioma include chemotherapy, anti-
angiogenic agents, and immune checkpoint inhibitors.
However, the use of these therapies carries potential risks of
renal toxicity. With advancements in treatment modalities,
patients with mesothelioma are experiencing longer life
expectancy. Yet, this also increases their exposure to
nephrotoxic agents, potentially leading to adverse renal
outcomes, which may limit available treatment options. To
address this issue, the research institution has proposed
a territory-wide retrospective study to estimate the
prevalence of adverse renal outcomes among patients with
mesothelioma and to investigate the associated risk factors.
The findings of this study are expected to facilitate the
management of mesothelioma, including the identification
of at-risk populations and the development of early
interventions aimed at preventing adverse renal outcomes.
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Prof. Ng Sheung Mei Shamay from the Department of
Rehabilitation Sciences, The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University has initiated a new project titled “Effects of
Transcutaneous Electrical Nerve Stimulation (TENS)
combined with Qigong exercises on respiratory function,
functional capacity, and quality of life in patients
with pneumoconiosis: A randomised controlled trial”.
Pneumoconiosis means fibrosis of the lungs due to dust of
free silica or dust containing free silica, or dust of asbestos
or dust containing asbestos. This project investigates a new
treatment method combining acupoint transcutaneous
electrical nerve stimulation (Acu-TENS) and traditional
Qigong, exploring its effect on improving pneumoconiosis
patients’ respiratory function, functional capacity, quality
of life and overall health. The project is expected to identify
new methods to facilitate patients’ respiratory and the
recovery of their functional capacity, to improve their quality
of life, and overall health. Moreover, the research results
are expected to assist medical professionals in developing
effective rehabilitation programmes for pneumoconiosis
patients, and also inspire further research in this field.

Prof. Xian Yanfang from the School of Chinese Medicine,
The Chinese University of Hong Kong has initiated a new
project titled “Evaluating the Efficacy and Safety of Modified
Qing-Zao-Jiu-Fei Decoction on Pneumoconiosis Patients:
A Randomized, Double-blinded, Placebo-Controlled
Trial”. The commonly used drugs for pneumoconiosis
are corticosteroids, which exhibit broad-spectrum anti-
inflammatory and anti-fibrotic effects but often cause severe
side effects with long-term use. To address this issue,
Trichosanthis Fructus (%) and Fritillariae Thunbergii
Bulbus C#T B £F) were incorporated into the Qing-Zao-Jiu-
Fei Decoction (QZJFD), resulting in a modified formulation
known as Modified QZJFD. A previous PCFB sponsored
project demonstrated that the Modified QZJFD surpassed
the original QZJFD in reversing pulmonary structural damage
and reducing collagen deposition in rat lung fibrosis induced
by bleomycin (BLM). It also alleviated pulmonary interstitial
thickening and inflammatory cell infiltration in the alveoli of
silica-treated rats. Notably, 91 days of continuous Modified
QZJFD treatment did not cause toxicity to major organs
of the rats, including the liver, lungs, and kidneys. In this
project, the research institution aims to assess the efficacy
and safety of the Modified QZJFD in pneumoconiosis
patients through a randomized, double-blinded, placebo-
controlled clinical trial. Positive findings from this study
could enable the direct application of this Chinese herbal
formula in clinical practice for pneumoconiosis patients.

Prof. Tse Lap Ah Shelly from JC School of Public Health
and Primary Care, Faculty of Medicine, The Chinese
University of Hong Kong has initiated a new project
titled “Artificial intelligence assisted diagnosis and risk
prediction of pneumoconiosis based on imaging genetics”.
Pneumoconiosis is traditionally diagnosed through chest
X-ray radiography. However, early-stage imaging changes are
often inconclusive, making timely diagnosis challenging. This
project builds on the consensus that pneumoconiosis arises
from the combined effects of occupational dust exposure and
genetic susceptibility, aiming to enhance diagnostic accuracy
and risk prediction using advanced imaging genetics methods.

Pneumoconiosis Compensation Fund Board Annual Report 2024
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The research institution plans to recruit 250 newly diagnosed
pneumoconiosis patients in China and conduct a genome-
wide association study (GWAS) to identify disease-specific
single nucleotide polymorphisms (SNPs). Simultaneously,
chest radiographic images from both pneumoconiosis cases
and controls will be collected. Computer image recognition
will be employed to extract features from these images
and identify imaging-related SNPs. By integrating imaging-
related SNPs, occupational dust exposure data, and chest
radiographic features, an Al-assisted diagnostic model and
subsequent risk prediction model for pneumoconiosis will be
developed. The ultimate goal is to enable early and accurate
diagnosis for timely prevention, thereby saving significant
medical resources.

1. A completed project titled “Influence of cognitive function
and skeletal muscle mass and strength on disability among
people with silicosis” was conducted by Prof. Cheng Ho
Yu from The Nethersole School of Nursing, Faculty of
Medicine, The Chinese University of Hong Kong. This
project aimed to 1) determine the prevalence of cognitive
impairment and skeletal muscle loss among patients
with silicosis and compare with the age-matched healthy
control; 2) to compare the risk of cognitive impairment
and skeletal muscle; 3) to identify factors associated with
cognitive impairment and skeletal muscle loss among
patients with silicosis and 4) to examine the associations
between cognitive impairment, skeletal muscle loss and
disability among patients with silicosis. Results of the study
indicated that individuals with silicosis were at an increased
risk of cognitive impairment and skeletal muscle loss,
ultimately contributing to disability. Early detection of risk
factors and the implementation of interventions targeting
sarcopenia and cognitive impairment are vital to lower the
risks of functional outcomes and mitigate disability in this
population.

2. Another completed project titled “Gamma-delta T cells as
immunotherapy against mesothelioma” was conducted by
Dr. Cheung Ka Loon Allen from the Department of Biology,
Hong Kong Baptist University. This project focused on
evaluating the effectiveness of gamma-delta T cells in
malignant pleural mesothelioma (MPM) cell and mice
models. The research findings indicated that gamma-delta
T cells could retard MPM development and PD-L1 blocking
could enhance the cancer killing ability of these cells in the
cell model. Additionally, gamma-delta T cells were shown to
migrate and infiltrate into MPM, and also inhibit its growth in
the mice model.

The Committee expresses gratitude to members for their
invaluable and professional insights over the years. Their
expertise has been crucial in advancing impactful research. We
look forward to collaborating with universities and institutions to
further influential and innovative research and applications that
benefit patients and stakeholders.
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COMMITTEE ON REHABILITATION
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The Committee is devoted to providing high-quality and tailored
rehabilitation services to pneumoconiosis and mesothelioma
patients for enhancing their physical condition. We are pleased to
highlight our key initiatives in this report.

In 2024, total expenditure on rehabilitation was $40.73 million,
representing an increase of $7.18 million compared with
2023. The increase was partly due to the larger number of
patients participating in rehabilitation exercises in community
rehabilitation centres, pulmonary rehabilitation services and
social support services.

Pulmonary Rehabilitation Services

In collaboration with the Hospital Authority, the Board continued
with the Programme to provide pulmonary rehabilitation services
to our patients across the territory through Ruttonjee Hospital,
Haven of Hope Hospital and North District Hospital. These
services were delivered by professional teams consisting of
respiratory physicians, nurses, physiotherapists and occupational
therapists from the three hospitals. During the year, 366 frail
patients in need of rehabilitation services were referred to this
Programme, and 3 084 service sessions were provided. The
Committee is grateful for the services which are helpful for
patients in need, and they responded with positive feedback.

Comprehensive Community Rehabilitation (CCR)
Programme

The CCR Programme continued to assist our patients in
developing enduring exercise habits and improving their
health conditions. During the year, the Programme recorded
encouraging results on patient participation and feedback. Key
highlights included:

- 104 patients completed preliminary assessments at the
designated rehabilitation centre of a hospital (2023: 106
patients).

- The accumulated numbers of patients having completed
Phase 2 and Phase 3 assessments reached 1 007 and 1 260
respectively (2023: 865 patients and 956 patients).

- 411 patients had participated in at least one exercise
session (2023: 374 patients).

— A total of 24 569 exercise sessions were attended by
patients (2023: 21 261 sessions).

- Monthly average exercise sessions per patient increased
slightly to 5.91 (2023: 5.88 sessions).

- In November, a record high of 335 participating patients was
reached (2023: 303 patients).
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COMMITTEE ON REHABILITATION

Social Support Services

Supporting and improving patients’ psychological and social
health during the rehabilitation process are vital. The Board
commissioned a non-government organisation to provide
psychological and social support services to patients and/or
carers in need. In 2024, the organisation’s professional social
workers paid 2 238 home visits to 331 patients and made 750
referrals for services.

Making use of different assessment tools, patients and carers
completed psychological assessments every 6 months for
monitoring their progress. Among 206 patients who have
completed the assessments, 58% and 68% of them showed
improvement in the Geriatric Depression Scale and Rasch-type
Loneliness Scale respectively, while 31% and 26% had ratings
in the respective scale reflecting that their depression and
loneliness did not worsen. Similarly, the majority of 106 carers
who have completed the assessments also showed improvement
or stable condition. Through the organisation’s social workers’
strong rapport with patients and carers, our services have become
a reliable resource for patients and carers in seeking assistance.
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The Committee also sponsored a variety of rehabilitation
programmes such as “Music Therapy Class”, “Molkky Class”,
“Mindfulness Meditation Class”, “Art Therapy Class” and “Tai Chi
Class” etc., attracting a total of over three hundred participants.
Such innovative activities offered diversified rehabilitation options
for patients.

The celebration of Lo Pan’s Birthday (Master’s Day) has
traditionally been held in high regard by the construction industry.
The Committee continued to sponsor a large-scale rehabilitation
luncheon commemorating the Master’s Day in 2024. The event
attracted an attendance of over 400 patients and their carers,
providing a platform for “fellows” to meet, get to know and
support each other. The participants responded enthusiastically
and obtained more rehabilitation information through this
event, thereby enhancing their motivation and willingness for
participation in rehabilitation programmes.

Last but not least, the Committee extends its heartfelt gratitude
to members for their contribution and efforts. Looking ahead, the
Committee will enhance existing rehabilitation programmes and
explore new initiatives to deliver better and customised services
to our patients.
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Patients sang joyfully during a music therapy session.
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Patients had more diverse rehabilitation options to choose from. They were participating in a Mélkky class and a Tai Chi
class.
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COMMITTEE ON PREVENTION
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In 2024, the Committee was dedicated to a comprehensive
prevention campaign aiming at enhancing awareness of
pneumoconiosis and mesothelioma prevention among
stakeholders within the construction industry and the public. Key
initiatives included the “Cordless Tools with Dust Removal System
Subsidy Scheme for SMEs”, the “Occupational Health Award”,
the “Prevention of Pneumoconiosis Site Beautification Campaign
and Promotional Toolbox Programme”, the “Medical Surveillance
Programme” and different sponsored prevention projects. Various
media channels were utilised, that our mascot “Dusty Boy” played
a significant role in promotion.

Occupational Health
Award

L PN

)
Cordless Tools with
Dust Removal System
Subsidy Scheme for SMEs
VAU SEER B A (B
EEHETRE
Bt &

=s)

Yo

Promotion on Medical Surveillance

Media Channels Programme
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‘;‘ﬁtgiﬂfg

In 2024, $23.60 million were spent on the above prevention
campaigns, down from $24.33 million in 2023. The expenses
decreased mainly due to less applications for the “Cordless Tools
with Dust Removal System Subsidy Scheme for SMEs”.

To incentivise small and medium-sized enterprises in the
construction, renovation, and maintenance sectors to adopt
dust-reducing tools, the Committee continued to launch the
“Cordless Tools with Dust Removal System Subsidy Scheme
for SMEs”. Since its launch in 2018, the Scheme has received
3 662 applications as of December 2024. This initiative provides
subsidies for eligible companies to purchase cordless tools with
dust collectors, promoting the practice of “dust reduction at
source” to prevent pneumoconiosis.
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In 2024, the Committee continued the partnership with the
Occupational Safety and Health Council, the Labour Department,
the Department of Health, and the Occupational Deafness
Compensation Board to co-organise the “Occupational Health
Award”, with aims at encouraging the adoption of innovative
methods and technologies in the construction industry, improving
dust prevention and safeguarding the occupational health of
workers. We extend our gratitude to all participating organisations
for their crucial contributions and innovation towards
pneumoconiosis prevention. By joining forces, we are confident to
raise occupational safety and health standards, creating a better
and healthier working environment.

The Committee has continued to sponsor trade unions and
non-governmental organisations to provide diverse prevention
programmes, including educational talks at construction sites,
rolling exhibitions in old districts, and activities tailored for diverse
racial groups. To help contractors effectively communicate
preventive measures to workers, promotional materials of the
“Prevention of Pneumoconiosis Site Beautification Campaign and
Promotional Toolbox Programme” were distributed to a number
of construction sites. Through collaborative engagement with
various stakeholders, the Committee attempts to extend the reach
and impact of its prevention messages, further enhancing health
and safety awareness in the community.

Moreover, the Committee has been proactive in deploying a
variety of promotional programmes across multiple media and
publicity channels to ensure widespread delivery of prevention
messages across the public. The mascot “Dusty Boy” notably
made appearances on popular television networks such as
TVB, Now TV and ViuTV. It was also visible in high-traffic areas
including MTR and bus stations, and was featured in radio
announcements during key segments on Commercial Radio | and
Metro Radio.

On the front of occupational health, the “Medical Surveillance
Programme” benefitted a total of 5 302 construction workers in
2024. The Programme facilitates regular physical examinations
for construction workers, enabling early detection of chest-related
diseases and timely medical intervention. Throughout their daily
work activities, workers have also increased their awareness of
preventing pneumoconiosis and mesothelioma.
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In conclusion, the Committee deeply appreciates members and
all stakeholders for their effort to prevent pneumoconiosis and
mesothelioma. Their efforts in launching impactful programmes
underscore our commitment to education and strategic
prevention. Approaching the Board’s 45" anniversary, we are
going to roll out a series of special prevention programmes
and activities aiming at strengthening the promotion of dust
prevention and reduction messages to construction workers,
other major stakeholders and the public. We look forward to
building on this year’s achievements and achieving even greater
outcomes together in the future.
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An advertising campaign featuring “Dusty Boy” was launched on bus bodies, at bus stations, MTR platforms, in-train
TVs, and various media channels, aiming to enhance awareness of dust prevention and reduction among the public and

construction workers.

FELES By BHAALRBERNERESNTRAERRFAUDEFIATENESER REABRKBEXTANEMRENE

R

Pneumoconiosis Compensation Fund Board Annual Report 2024



A series of educational talks at construction sites targeting construction workers were held.
ERET RN T —RINHE T ANHBHEE -

The Board Chairman, Sr Lam Kin Wing, Eddie, MH (middle), presented prizes to a winning company in “The 19%
Occupational Health Award Forum and Award Presentation Ceremony”.
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“The 19" Occupational Health Award” was co-organised by Occupational Safety and Health Council, Labour Department,
Department of Health, Pneumoconiosis Compensation Fund Board, and Occupational Deafness Compensation Board. A
group photo was taken with all the officiating guests at the ceremony.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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To the members of Pneumoconiosis Compensation Fund Board
(Established in Hong Kong under the Pneumoconiosis and
Mesothelioma (Compensation) Ordinance)

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Pneumoconiosis
Compensation Fund Board (the “Board”) set out on pages 26 to
69, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31
December 2024, the statement of comprehensive income, the
statement of changes in funds and reserves and the statement of
cash flows for the year then ended and notes, comprising material
accounting policy information and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view
of the financial position of the Board as at 31 December 2024,
and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Board in accordance with
the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Pneumoconiosis Compensation Fund Board Annual Report 2024

BMERTNERHEEESEESES
(IRIE it BE 1R T0 & i % 81 12 18 (f 1B 1R D1 ) IR &
JERL)

=R

KRB B F26E69BFTHMER T E KmE
EZsZEg((He£ B8NP BKHRE  2ER
2024F 12 A31 AWM KA NE - BEZBLEF
ERE2ERGEER B hkFEEHERRESRE
FURMBRENT  EZESHBERERR
Hib &R -

BMRE  ZEMBEREDBEESSTMAE
BB AU BRELR) - BEEMA MR
TEESZE2MN2024%12A31 BT Ak R A
LEBZEZAIEFEMNTBRELBERE

RRNER

BPERBETEGHMASRAN(EERALE
ADETERZ - RAEZXFEANTAENELD
EARE [ HHETLFA YRR EAEZ BT
MO IELME - HPIRBEBFESHMAEN
(BxgiamEETA) (TADBIRNESEZE
g YERBTHETRMANEMEREE - &
FIHR1E - BPIFEGSNETRERTD MEE
REMNETERIREER



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Information other than the financial statements
and auditor’s report thereon

The Board members are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in
the annual report, other than the financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of the Board members for the
financial statements

The Board members are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and for such internal control
as the Board members determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board members are
responsible for assessing the Board’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the Board members either intend to liquidate the Board or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the
override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Board’s
internal control.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the Board members.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board members’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Board’s ability to continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Board to cease to continue as a
going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with the Board members regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

23 June 2025
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FONEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #ZE2024% 12 A31 8 ILFE UAETIIR)

Note 2024 2023
ihg=s $ $
Revenue KA
Levy income B A 4 441,306,066 420,961,912
Other income and loss Hih A R &8
Bank interest income ERITH BUA 108,752,785 94,452,072
Interest income on debt investments at IR KA EZ EBIREZ
amortised cost FEUWA 1,501,520 565,000
Dividend income from listed securities 8 FT#EAFERBUA 24,123,781 21,016,108
Ex-gratia fund administration charge REFEESPIELZ 1T
received &M 90,142 103,151
Penalty on late payments of levies B SR ET I ER 2 SR 1,236,199 379,608
Sundry income FEIEURA - 8,397
Fair value gain/(loss) on financial assets AR BEG ABRZZ CRIE
at fair value through profit or loss EzAnEEK (5i8) 48,234,305 (42,892,395)
183,938,732 73,631,941
Expenditure T
Operating and administrative EEBRITHHAX

expenditures
Pneumoconiosis and mesothelioma FREERI & fm M B E

compensations (242,346,493) (220,981,767)
Project expenses EENF X (69,624,393) (61,687,839)
Employee benefit expenses % B H B e FI 2 5 (21,240,683)  (19,194,778)
Administrative expenses TR X 6 (6,481,158) (1,857,226)
Medical examination fees His&H 7 (6,627,260) (4,974,960)
Depreciation e 9 (739,878) (791,039)
Amortisation of intangible assets A E 10 (61,901) (188,729)
Capital expenditure e (2,071,783) (816,703)

(349,193,549) (310,493,041)

Surplus for the year REEERR 276,051,249 184,100,812

Other comprehensive income Hit2mE K=

Item that will not be reclarified to profit A EHEH L/ EZTER >
or loss EHA

Net fair value gain/(loss) on equity BEEAABEFAEMER
investments designated at fair value Uz GEEIR) 2 RAIRE 2
through other comprehensive income A BEYWE/(EEB)F5E
(non-recycling) 5,859,458 (9,789,883)

Total comprehensive income for the 2E2HKNFEE
year 281,910,707 174,310,929

The notes on pages 31 to 69 form part of these financial 31698 MiFAZEHBEREX ZEK I
statements. )
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Bl FE AR =

At 31 December 2024 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

N2024912 A318 UAETTHIR)

Note 2024 2023
P& $ $
Non-current assets FEREEE
Property, plant and equipment M - R RERE 9 28,279,059 19,959,438
Intangible assets mEE 10 261,836 295,077
Debt investments at amortised cost B AT E 2 EHIRE 11 100,000,000 -
Equity investments designated at fair BERAABEFALMEE
value through other comprehensive Wiz 2 RAIRE
income 12 184,040,147 178,180,689
Financial assets at fair value through EBAREBEFABRRZESHE
profit or loss B 13 318,314,990 270,080,685
Time deposits with original maturity of  REBBE—FE2H 2 FH7F
more than one year R 15 900,075,762 800,075,762
Total non-current assets ERBEEHE 1,530,971,794 1,268,591,651
Current assets RBEE
Accounts receivable FEUERFK 14 41,831,642 18,995,640
Interest receivables FEMFIE 82,313,933 52,661,791
Prepayments and deposits ENFIERES 191,354 54,553
Debt investments at amortised cost R IER AT 22 EBHIRE 11 — 100,000,000

Time deposits with original maturity of

[REHR®=1E A REH 2 EH

more than three months T 15 1,893,164,138 1,816,292,315
Cash and cash equivalents BeMREeEEYD 16 8,495,569 19,863,219
Total current assets REEEALE 2,025,996,636 2,007,867,518
Current liability pE=NE
Accruals and other payables FEETFUIE R HE At R A 17 8,165,030 9,563,660
Net current assets REBEEFE 2,017,831,606 1,998,303,858
Total assets less current liabilities HWEERABEE 3,548,803,400 3,266,895,509
Non-current liability kFBEE
Provision for long service payments KRR BE 18 694,922 697,738
Net assets EEFE 3,548,108,478 3,266,197,771

MERNEFRHEESER ST 2024F /)
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Bl F5 R IR =

At 31 December 2024 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) 72024412 31 8 (LA THIR)

Note 2024 2023

B 5E $ $
Funds and reserves BEoR#E
Accumulated fund 2EES 19 3,517,819,688 3,240,001,097
Research fund WrRES 19 1,559,797 6,856,142
Prevention fund EhEE 19 - 4,757,377
Computer systems fund BEGES 19 261,836 295,077
Capital reserve BARFEE 19 28,279,059 19,959,438
Investment reserve AR 19 188,098 (5,671,360)
Total funds and reserves A kfFEERE 3,648,108,478 3,266,197,771

Sr. LAM Kin-wing, Eddie, MH
Chairman

The notes on pages 31 to 69 form part of these financial
statements.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUNDS AND RESERVES

For the year ended 31 December 2024 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BERGGREHE

HE2024F12A31B IEFEE UABTIIR)

Funds and

reserves

ESRf#E

$

At 1 January 2023 M2023F1H1H 3,091,886,842

Surplus for the year EFERR 184,100,812

Other comprehensive income Hit 2wk

Net fair value loss on financial assets at fair value BRAnBEFAEMEERE SREE

through other comprehensive income Z AR BEEEFE (9,789,883)

At 31 December 2023 and at 1 January 2024

R2023F12H831HKX2024F1A1H

3,266,197,771

Surplus for the year EFERGB 276,051,249
Other comprehensive income Hip 2 mEkE
Net fair value gain on financial assets at fair value BRAnBEFAREMEERECEHEE

through other comprehensive income ZAREBEWSFRE 5,859,458
At 31 December 2024 72024412H31H 3,548,108,478

The notes on pages 31 to 69 form part of these financial #31ZE69B 2WiHAZENKRE ZHEKI

statements.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW

REREE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

HE2024F12A31 B IEFEE UABTIIR)

Note 2024 2023
B 5T $ $

Cash flows generated from operating & EZHRERE

activities
Cash generated from operations and net &iEE4+ 74 Rh&ETHIN

cash flows generated from operating EREFEE

activities 20 71,367,908 100,609,560
Cash flows from investing activities RETHRERE
Purchases of items of property, plant BAMZE - #E LR EEE

and equipment (9,059,499) (81,653)
Purchases of intangible assets BARTEE (28,660) (184,875)
(Increase)/decrease in time deposits [REBB =@ A& EIE 2 7 5

with original maturity of more than FROGmM), R

three months (76,871,823) 260,956,298
Increase in time deposits with original  RERBE—FE I FHF

maturity of more than one year SN (100,000,000) (442,281,406)
Interest received BRI S, 79,100,643 67,608,340
Dividends received LB AR B, 24,123,781 21,016,108
Net cash flows used in investing BREZBFTARSRETE

activities (82,735,558) (92,967,188)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and BeRkESEEYZF

cash equivalents R4,/ (11,367,650) 7,642,372
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning REFNZRERALEEY

of year 19,863,219 12,220,847
Cash and cash equivalents at end of REEZRERBSEEY

year 16 8,495,569 19,863,219

The notes on pages 31 to 69 form part of these financial

statements.

e
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

General information

Pneumoconiosis Compensation Fund Board (the “Board”)
is established with a role as a compensation body, and
to engage in the areas of rehabilitation, prevention and
research in respect of pneumoconiosis. The address of its
registered office is 15/F Nam Wo Hong Building, 148 Wing
Lok Street, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong.

With the enactment of the Pneumoconiosis (Compensation)
(Amendment) Ordinance 1993 (the “Ordinance”) on 9 July
1993, all those pneumoconiotics who were compensated
by the Board between 1 January 1981 and 8 July 1993
can make an application to the Board to receive further
compensation and other payments under the new
compensation scheme. After re-assessment is made by the
Pneumoconiosis Medical Board and approval granted, the
applicant will receive monthly payments of compensation in
respect of the difference between the degree of incapacity
determined by the Pneumoconiosis Medical Board on the
re-assessment and the degree of permanent incapacity
previously determined by the Board under the Ordinance
prior to its amendment.

From 9 July 1993 onwards, persons suffering from
pneumoconiosis receive monthly payments of compensation
instead of a lump-sum compensation. The Board’s liability
to compensation arises when an applicant is assessed
by the Pneumoconiosis Medical Board to be suffering
from pneumoconiosis and a certificate is issued by the
Commissioner for Labour of the applicant’s fulfilment of the
residency requirement.

On 18 April 2008, the Pneumoconiosis (Compensation)
Ordinance was amended to include provisions to provide
compensation to persons suffering from mesothelioma.
Accordingly, the name of the Pneumoconiosis
(Compensation) Ordinance has been renamed as the
Pneumoconiosis and Mesothelioma (Compensation)
Ordinance. Applicants who are assessed by the
Pneumoconiosis Medical Board to be suffering from
mesothelioma are subject to the same eligibility criteria
and payment of compensation as applicants suffering from
pNeumoconiosis.

Bif 5 ¥k 2% Bfil 53

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (JAM7T3II7R)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
81 55 6 2% B 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (AW 7T3I7R)

32

On 1 September 2008, the Pneumoconiosis and
Mesothelioma (Compensation) Ordinance was further
amended to allow patients with pneumoconiosis or
mesothelioma to seek treatment from registered Chinese
medicine practitioners and claim reimbursement of the
medical expenses and cost of medicines for the treatment of
pneumoconiosis or mesothelioma, subject to the maximum
amount of claims as prescribed in the Pneumoconiosis and
Mesothelioma (Compensation) Ordinance.

2.1 Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”). The measurement basis used in
the preparation of the financial statements is the historical
cost basis, except for equity investments designated at fair
value through other comprehensive income and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, are stated at fair
value as explained in the respective accounting policies (see
notes 12 and 13 respectively). These financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is the
Board’s functional currency.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,
the results of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty are
discussed in note 3.

2.1
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.2 Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments to
HKFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting
period of the Board.

None of these developments have had a material effect on
how the Board’s results and financial position for the current
or prior periods have been prepared or presented. The
Board has not applied any new standard or interpretation
that is not yet effective for the current accounting period.

The Board has adopted the amendments to HKFRSs issued
by HKICPA to these financial statements for the current
accounting period, which are applicable to the Board. The
adoption of the revised HKFRSs has had no significant
financial effect on these financial statements.

2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong

financial reporting standards

The Board has not early applied any of the new or revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective for
the accounting year ended 31 December 2024 in these
financial statements. Among these HKFRSs, the following
are expected to be relevant to the Board’s financial
statements upon becoming effective:

Amendments to
HKAS 21

The effects of changes in foreign
exchange rates: Lack of
exchangeability!

Amendments to Financial instruments and Financial

HKFRS 9 and instruments: disclosures —

HKFRS 7 Amendments to the classification
and measurement of financial
instruments?

HKFRS 18 Presentation and disclosure in
financial statements?
HKFRS 19 Subsidiaries without public
accountability: disclosures?®
! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2025.
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2026.
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2027.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2.2

2.3
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ABTTIIR)

The Board is in the process of making an assessment of
the impact of these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial
application but is not yet in a position to state whether these
new and revised HKFRSs would have a significant impact on
the Board’s results of operations and financial position.

2.4 Summary of material accounting policies

Fair value measurement

The Board measures its equity investments and investment
funds at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.
The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset or
liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal
or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the
Board. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured
using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.

The Board uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable
inputs.

Pneumoconiosis Compensation Fund Board Annual Report 2024
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Board determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required (other
than financial assets), the assets recoverable amount is
estimated. An assets recoverable amount is the higher of
the asset’s or cash-generating unit’'s value in use and its
fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs. In testing a cash-generating
unit for impairment, a portion of the carrying amount of a
corporate asset (e.g., a headquarters building) is allocated
to an individual cash-generating unit if it can be allocated
on a reasonable and consistent basis or, otherwise, to the
smallest group of cash-generating units.

Bif 5 ¥k 2% Bfil 53

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (JAM7T3II7R)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (AW 7T3I7R)
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An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment
loss is charged to profit or loss in the period in which it
arises.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset is reversed only if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount
of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in the period in
which it arises.

A party is considered to be related to the Board if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person
(i) has control or joint control over the Board;
(i)  has significant influence over the Board; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Board or of a parent of the Board;

or
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies;

()

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Board are members of the
same Board;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Board are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Board or an
entity related to the Board;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Board or to the parent of the
Board.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(b)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (AW 7T3I7R)
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Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its
intended use. Expenditure incurred after items of property,
plant and equipment have been put into operation, such as
repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where
the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a
major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the
asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property,
plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals,
the Board recognises such part as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to
its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal
annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Owned assets

Properties 50 years

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the
lease terms and 10 years

Computer equipment byears

Right-of-use asset
Leasehold land Over the shorter of the

lease terms and 50 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset
is derecognised is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

ltems may be produced while bringing an item of property,
plant and equipment to the location and condition necessary
for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management. The proceeds from selling any such items and
the related costs are recognised in profit or loss.

Purchased computer software is stated at cost less any
impairment losses and is amortised on the straight-line basis
over its estimated useful life of 5 years.

At inception of a contract, the Board assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer has
both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and to
obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from that
use.

(i)  Asalessee

At the lease commencement date, the Board
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,
except for short-term leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets
which, for the Board, are primarily laptops and office
furniture. When the Board enters into a lease in respect
of a low-value asset, the Board decides whether to
capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The
lease payments associated with those leases which
are not capitalised are recognised as an expense on a
systematic basis over the lease term.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (JAM7T3II7R)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (AW 7T3I7R)

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is
initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition,
the lease liability is measured at amortised cost and
interest expense is calculated using the effective
interest method. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or rate are not included in
the measurement of the lease liability and hence are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease
is capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial direct costs
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-
of-use assets also includes an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it
is located, discounted to their present value, less
any lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset
is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, except for the
following types of right-of-use asset:

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a change
in an index or rate, or there is a change in the Board’s
estimate of the amount expected to be payable under
a residual value guarantee, or there is a change arising
from the reassessment of whether the Board will be
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase, extension
or termination option. When the lease liability is
remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is
made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset,
or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

In the statement of financial position, the current
portion of long-term lease liabilities is determined as
the principal portion of contractual payments that
are due to be settled within twelve months after the
reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Accounts receivable that do not contain a significant
financial component or for which the Board has applied the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financial component are measured at the transaction price
determined under HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers. All the other financial assets are initially
recognised at fair value plus transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets, except
in the case of financial assets recorded at fair value through
profit or loss. Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
when the Board commits to purchase or sell the assets.

(a) Classification and measurement
Debt instruments are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method, subject to
impairment if the assets are held for the collection
of contractual cash flows where those contractual
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and
interest.

Debt instruments that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or as financial assets at fair value
though other comprehensive income are measured
at fair value through profit or loss. Interest income for
these financial assets is included in finance income.

Equity investments are measured at fair value through
profit or loss unless, on initial recognition, the Board
has irrevocably elected to designate such investments
that are not held for trading as equity investments
at fair value through other comprehensive income.
Dividends of such investments are recognised in profit
or loss when the Board’s right to receive payment
is established. Changes in the fair value of such
investments are recognised in other comprehensive
income and are never recycled to profit or loss even
when the assets are sold.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (JAM7T3II7R)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
81 55 6 2% B 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(b)

ABTTIIR)

Impairment

The Board applies the expected credit loss model on
all the financial assets that are subject to impairment.
For accounts receivable without a significant financial
component, the Board applies the simplified approach
which requires impairment allowances to be measured
at lifetime expected credit losses.

For other financial assets, impairment allowances
are recognised under the general approach where
expected credit losses are recognised in two stages.
For credit exposures where there has not been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, the Board is required to provide for credit
losses that result from possible default events within
the next 12 months. For those credit exposures where
there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required
for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the
exposure irrespective of the timing of the default.

The Board considers a default has occurred when a
financial asset is more than 90 days past due unless
the Board has reasonable and supportable information
to demonstrate that a more appropriate default
criterion should be applied.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the assets have expired; or
where the Board has transferred its contractual rights
to receive the cash flows of the financial assets and
has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership; or where control is not retained.

AME
HeZBeUMAAETREZ SR
BERABHEEEHERIL - gt
EXBEXD <BYEARNE - £&
ZESERBLIE  RIBEZITE
MEBEEAZ2NEMEEBER

= °
MEMESBMEENS R ER R
MIERR - BERE  BREE

EED WA ERFER - Bt BT ®R
ARI MBI N FERRTE -
HeZBeARARR T —BEARZA

REBAEZENENSIBZEERE

T’Eﬁﬁé‘% ° ?ﬁé%ﬂiﬁ&%@b&ﬂiﬂ?ﬁ%
BhZEERBRME - TwAkELE

EHES i’]/,\ ?fﬁ@ﬁﬁkl‘ﬁﬁé‘ﬁ%?i
HAZBREEERFLERREE

HEeZBaRRn eRMEE—B8H
HIBOOK - IR BHAERBOEN - K
HESZERESEREGREIEN
B MARBEERBERZIENE
% - AfERIE

iR IETER
BUWBKEEEZREREZENTD
fEmE  RESZBEDERAKN
CREEREREZANENACHE
BHB R AR D E R & 8w
EMEHZEREE TS - £
REEGRIEHER -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at the fair value
of the consideration received less directly attributable
transaction costs. After initial recognition, they are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when they are
extinguished, i.e., when the obligation is discharged or
cancelled, or expires.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the statement of financial position
if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired,
less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Board’s cash management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, which are not restricted as to use.

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can
be made of the amount of the obligation.

Bif 5 ¥k 2% Bfil 53

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (JAM7T3II7R)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
81 55 6 2% B 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (AW 7T3I7R)
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When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is recognised in profit or loss.

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle
a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another
party, a separate asset is recognised for any expected
reimbursement that would be virtually certain. The amount
recognised for the reimbursement is limited to the carrying
amount of the provision.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Board. It
can also be a present obligation arising from past events
that is not recognised because it is not probable that outflow
of economic resources will be required or the amount of
obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements, if any. When a change
in the probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is
probable, it will then be recognised as a provision.

The Board is exempted from Hong Kong profits tax under
Section 88 of the Hong Kong Inland Revenue Ordinance.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Levy income, penalty on late payments of levies and ex-
gratia fund administration charge are recognised when the
Board becomes entitled to them and it is probable that they
will be received.

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period,
when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right
to receive payment has been established, it is probable that
the economic benefits associated with the dividend will
flow to the Board and the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably.

Paid leave carried forward

The Board provides paid annual leave to its employees
under their employment contracts on a calendar year basis.
Under certain circumstances, such leave which remains
untaken as at the end of the reporting period is permitted to
be carried forward and utilised by the respective employees
in the following year. An accrual is made at the end of the
reporting period for the expected future cost of such paid
leave earned during the year by the employees and carried
forward.

Pension schemes

The Board operates a mandatory provident fund scheme
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
(the “MPF Scheme”) and a defined contribution retirement
scheme under the Occupational Retirement Scheme
Ordinance (the “ORSO Scheme”) for its employees.
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Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to profit or
loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules
of the MPF Scheme and the ORSO Scheme. The Board’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme. The vesting percentage
of the Board’s employer contributions is in accordance
with the employees’ years of service when contributed into
the ORSO Scheme. Forfeited contributions in respect of
employees who leave the Board before their contributions
fully vest are available to the other employees in the ORSO
Scheme. For LSP obligations, the estimated amount of
future benefit is determined after deducting the negative
service cost arising from the accrued benefits derived from
the Board’s MPF contributions that have been vested with
employees, which are deemed to be contributions from the
relevant employees. The assets of the MPF Scheme and the
ORSO Scheme are held separately from those of the Board
in an independently administered fund.

Significant accounting estimates

The preparation of the Board’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in
the future.

In the process of applying the Board’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart
from those involving estimations, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Classification of debt investments at amortised cost

The Board follows the guidance of HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments on classifying non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity
at amortised cost. This classification requires significant
judgement. In making this judgement, the Board determines
the appropriate business models and assesses the “solely
payments of principal and interest” requirements for
financial assets. The unlisted bonds and certificates of
deposits were classified as debt investments at amortised
cost as the Board has determined that the objective of
holding the investments is to collect contractual cash flows
of principal and interest.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

Provision for expected credit losses on accounts
receivable

The Board uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for
accounts receivable. The provision rates are based on days
past due for groupings of various customer segments that
have similar loss patterns. The provision matrix is initially
based on the Board’s historical observed default rates.
The Board will calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical
credit loss experience with forward-looking information.
For instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross
domestic product) are expected to deteriorate over the next
year which can lead to an increased number of defaults
in the construction sector, the historical default rates are
adjusted. At each reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are updated and changes in the forward-
looking estimates are analysed.
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The assessment of the correlation among historical
observed default rates, forecast economic conditions
and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs
is sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast
economic conditions. The Board’s historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may also
not be representative of a customer’s actual default in
the future. The information about the ECLs on the Board’s
accounts receivable is disclosed in note 14 to the financial
statements.

Provisions

Judgement is involved in determining whether a present
obligation exists and in estimating the probability, timing
and amount of any outflows.

Provisions for legal proceedings typically require a higher
degree of judgement than other types of provisions. When
matters are at an early stage, accounting judgements
can be difficult because of the high degree of uncertainty
associated with determining whether a present obligation
exists, and estimating the probability and amount of any
outflows that may arise. As matters progress, the Board
members and legal advisers evaluate on an ongoing
basis whether provisions should be recognised, revising
previous judgements and estimates as appropriate. At more
advanced stages, it is typically easier to make judgements
and estimates around a better defined set of possible
outcomes. However, the amount provided for can remain
very sensitive to the assumptions used. There could be
a wide range of possible outcomes for any pending legal
proceedings. As a result, it is often not practicable to
quantify a range of possible outcomes for individual matters.
It is also not practicable to meaningfully quantify ranges of
potential outcomes in aggregate for these types of provisions
because of the diverse nature and circumstances of such
matters and the wide range of uncertainties involved.
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FE BT R 5 1 0 B AF A 1 BHE AR R
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FRFABRBEBERAMENRERERE
RIZEZHIE - RPN PIEERE - 7]
REHUAEL G HE  AAEEERETF
B EIL (AT e A i E 4 Z E I ERR
Mzt R 28 - B RIBATEES -
BERMER E2ZBRZENERE
RER@EThELTRRAERE YEARE
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B BEVUAREZUSM —RIRAETER
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bif 5 ¥k 2% Bfil 53

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (JAM7T3II7R)

Levy income BRUA
2024 2023
$ $
Private sector N 196,282,726 202,575,311

Public sector NHTR

Mass Transit Railway BEITE 14,177,779 10,202,315
Port and Airport Development Scheme BO RIS RS 44,955,589 32,378,307
West Kowloon Cultural District AR 1,496,935 2,031,112
Others H 184,290,830 173,531,969
Quarry industry AR 102,207 242,898
441,306,066 420,961,912

In accordance with the provision of Section 35 and
schedule 5 in Part VIl of the amended Pneumoconiosis and
Mesothelioma (Compensation) Ordinance, the levy rate
was 0.25% on the value of (a) all construction operations
exceeding HK$1,000,000 undertaken in Hong Kong and the
tender for which was submitted on or after 18 June 2000
and (b) on all quarrying products produced in Hong Kong
with effect from 18 June 2000. Effective 20 August 2012,
the levy rate has been changed to 0.15% on the value of
(a) all construction operations exceeding HK$1,000,000
undertaken in Hong Kong and the tender for which was
submitted on or after 20 August 2012 and (b) on all
quarrying products produced in Hong Kong with effect from
20 August 2012. Effective 30 July 2018, the levy threshold
on construction operations increased from HK$1,000,000 to
HK$3,000,000.

RIEAE RT KA BRI & R I I B2 788 (i E)
1B EVIER D E35 KRS Z IR TE -
B E50.25% @ BAR () TEEAHE
TMEER®1,000,000T 2 EELR
MEZEZM2000F6 A 18H HIABIER
K (b)A20004F6 188 M IABEE B
BB REEMR - B2012F8A20H
H o MR ERREEE0.15% - MAN A
EARBEITMEEREBL,000,0007T 2 #
EITRR - MEEEZEN2012F8H208 5 M
BIEZ  M(D)R2012E8A208 &A%
EEERREZMBAERER - B20184F
7A30B# - HRETRRZHRFIEE A
1,000,000 tHE = £3,000,0007T °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
81 55 6 2% B 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A TTHIIR)

5 Employee benefit expenses 5 BEFMEEFNMAX
2024 2023
$ $
Wages, salaries and allowances TITE - HFakEi 19,045,890 17,798,250
Staff medical insurance B 8 B ERE 294,331 218,881
Staff compensation insurance B 8 B E R 27,760 26,685
Pension scheme contributions (defined RIRSFT BB
contribution schemes) (REHFKEED
ORSO Scheme B SR IRET S 308,500 338,203
MPF Scheme wiEe 2l 1,434,076 372,326
(Reversal of provision)/provision for long REIBRTE & (B ERR) BE
service payments (note 18) (B¥7E18) (2,816) 582,723
Provision/(reversal of provision) for unutilised k{& A E BB~ (B EmE)
annual leave 132,942 (142,290)

21,240,683 19,194,778

No Board members received any fees or emoluments in BMEEACZESLZERANTFEARES
respect of their services rendered to the Board during the ZESREZREWEERE A B¢
year (2023: HK$Nil). (20234 : fH)

Pneumoconiosis Compensation Fund Board Annual Report 2024



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
81l 555 6 2= My 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

ABTTIIR)

Administrative expenses 6 1THRAX
2024 2023
$ $
Auditor’s remuneration ZEE BN &
Audit services EZRS 180,000 180,000
Other services E AR 10,000 10,000
Impairment loss on accounts receivables, FEUBR R E B 1B F R
net (note 14) (Ftzx14) 3,922,594 18,147
Legal and professional fees FEENEEER 182,071 128,212
Printing and stationery ENff B2 3 & 82,711 96,047
Others Hh 2,103,782 1,424,820
6,481,158 1,857,226
Medical examination fees 7 HEEHA

Medical examination fees represent fees paid and payable
to the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region in respect of medical examinations conducted by the
Pneumoconiosis Medical Board under Sections 23 and 23A
of the Pneumoconiosis and Mesothelioma (Compensation)
Ordinance.

Income tax 8

Hong Kong profits tax has not been provided as the Board is
exempted by virtue of Section 88 of the Hong Kong Inland
Revenue Ordinance.

HEEBRRIECHERIE R EEKE
(R RGI) 23 R 23AM 5 + B#US A
BN TEEENITHRRBFE B ERTT
ERHAGLZEEMPIMZER -

FRGH

MERTENEHERE  RESES
Z B RBEF S (RH RG] Fe8ikim &

B o
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ABTTIIR)

9 Property, plant and equipment

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
81 55 6 2% B 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

9 Mx HBERRME

Right-of-use
asset Owned assets
EREEE BREE
Leasehold Leasehold ~ Computer
land  Properties improvements  equipment Total Total
HENE
HELH VH YRIE ElRE &3t 5
$ § $ $ § $
31 December 2024 2024%12831A
At31 December 2023and at 1 January 2024:  #2023%12R31A RA2024E1R1R
Cost A 6,805,332 17052690 5109410 2563150 24725250 31,580,582
Accumulated depreciation ZirhE (107609 (4,604,229 (51094100  (1,799,8%) (11,513,535) (11,621,144
Net carrying amount GHFE 6,747,723 12,448 461 - 763204 13211715 19,959,438
At T January 2024, ROUEIRIA
net of accumulated depreciation MhETE 6,747,723 12,448,461 - 763254 13211715 19,959,438
Additions T - - 8193732 865,767 9059499 9,059,499
Disposals HE - - (1094100 (104750)  (5,214160)  (5,214,160)
Depreciation provided during the year FERELRE (7971)  (341,004) (68281)  (322572)  (731907)  (739,878)
Written back on disposals HERHE - - 5109410 104750 5214160 5214160
At 31 December 2024, R04E128318 -
net of accumulated depreciation MEZiiE 6,739,752 12,107407 8125451 1306449 21539307 28,279,059
At 31 December 2024: R2024F12831R:
Cost A 6,805,332  17,092690 8193732 3324167 28570589 35425921
Accumulated depreciation Zirhg (115,580)  (4,945,283) (68,281)  (2017,718)  (7,031,282)  (7,146,862)
Net carrying amount EHEE 6,739,752 12107407 8125451 1306449 21539307 28,279,059
31 December 2023 2023%12831R
At 31 December 2022 and at 1January 2023: 12022128318 &
RABEIRIA:
Cost Bk 6,855,332 17,052690 5109410 2481497 24643597 31,498,929
Accumulated depreciation 2ithE (99638)  (4203175) (51094100 (1,357,882 (10,730.467) (10,830,105)
Net carrying amount FEFE 6,795,694 12,789,515 - 1123615 13913130 20,668,824
At T January 2023, R2023E1R1A -
net of accumulated depreciation MEEiHE 6,795,694 12,789,515 - 1123615 13913130 20,668,824
Additions HE - - - 81,693 81,653 81,603
Depreciation proviced during the year EERERE (7971 (341,054) - {04 (783068) (791,039
At 31 December 2023, RABE128318
net of accumulated depreciation MEZiE 6747723 12,448 461 - 763254 13211715 19,959,438
At 31 December 2023: W0B3E12A31A:
Cost A 6,805,332 17052690 5109410 2563150 24725250 31,580,582
Accumulated depreciation ZirhE (107,609 (4,604,229 (51094100  (1,799,8%) (11,513,535) (11,621,144
Net carrying amount GHFE 6,747,723 12,448 461 - 763204 13211715 19,959,438
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10 Intangible assets

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

10 BEFEE

Bl 55 %6 2% Bl 51

ABTTIIR)

Computer software

EE
$
31 December 2024 2024%12H31H
At 31 December 2023 and at 1 January 2024: MR2023F 12318 k202417818 ¢
Cost RN 1,381,041
Accumulated amortisation RN (1,085,964)
Net carrying amount BRME A 295,077
At 1 January 2024, net of accumulated amortisation 7202451 A18 - 1k Rt#ks 295,077
Additions RE 28,660
Amortisation provided during the year FREEHEE (61,901)
At 31 December 2024, net of accumulated 2024512318 » Nk Rty
amortisation 261,836
At 31 December 2024: 202412 A318:
Cost PR AR 1,409,701
Accumulated amortisation RET (1,147,865)
Net carrying amount BREFE 261,836
31 December 2023 2023%12H831H
At 31 December 2022 and at 1 January 2023: 72022912 A31 8 &k2023F1A1R ¢
Cost PR AR 1,196,166
Accumulated amortisation RETHEH (897,235)
Net carrying amount BREFE 298,931
At 1 January 2023, net of accumulated amortisation 7202351818 @ 1% 25t 298,931
Additions = 184,875
Amortisation provided during the year FEEIERE (188,729)
At 31 December 2023, net of accumulated MR2023%12A31H » kR 2ty
amortisation 295,077
At 31 December 2023: 1K2023F12A31H:
Cost AR 1,381,041
Accumulated amortisation Rt (1,085,964)
Net carrying amount BRI SHAE 295,077

MERNEFRHEESESS 20245588
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bl 55 ¥k 2= Bl 51

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A TTHIIR)

11 Debt investments at amortised cost 11 HBERLSTEC2BERE
2024 2023
$ $
Debt investments at amortised cost, at TR E 2 EFINE -
nominal value EEE
Non-current: JEmED
— Unlisted bond —JELETESH 100,000,000 -
Current: Ep
— Unlisted bond —3EEMES - 100,000,000

As at 31 December 2024, the Board’s unlisted bond
investment is with a fixed interest rate of 3.35% per annum
and will mature in August 2027. As at 31 December 2023,
the Board’s unlisted bond investment is with a fixed interest
rate of 0.565% per annum and matured in August 2024.

MR2024%12A318 A4 T E8g 2k tH
BEHIREREEFFEI3.35%:TE - W
#2027F8AF|HA - H20234F12A318 -
E¢ZBE Ik EMERRERETEFFH
K0.565%+ 8 0 WE 202458 AFIH] -

12 Equity investments designated at fair value 12 EEERAABETAEMEZE
through other comprehensive income Wiz RARE
2024 2023
$ $
Listed equity investments, at fair value: EBRAEE - RASEE
Hong Kong BE 184,040,147 178,180,689

The above equity investments were irrevocably designated
at fair value through other comprehensive income as the
Board considers these investments to be strategic in nature.

Pneumoconiosis Compensation Fund Board Annual Report 2024
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
81l 555 6 2= My 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (JAM7T3II7R)

Details of the Board’s equity investments designated at fair ESZEeRETRANEBEFALMET
value through other comprehensive income are as follows: Wz RAIRE 2 FFBWT -

Dividend Dividend

income for the income for the

Fair value as at yearended  Fair value as at year ended

Stock 31December  31December  31December 31 December

Name of company code 2024 2024 2023 2023

M2024% Bzo0u%E 120235 HZ2023F

12318 12B31HILEE 12A318  12A31HILEE

AGE:R REGRS ZARER ZBREMA ZARER ZREWA

$ $ $ $

CK Hutchison Holdings Ltd. RINDEEXBRAH 1 24,028,002 1,426,047 24,230,648 1,645,484

CLP Holdings Ltd. REERERAR 2 22,515,440 1,068,880 22,222,360 1,068,880

Hong Kong and China Gas Co. Ltd. &E+EERERAF 3 8,689,833 489,765 8,367,987 489,765

HSBC Holdings plc ESERARAR 5 56,910,640 4,807,277 47,300,400 3,116,641

Power Assets Holdings Ltd. BHEXBRAT 6 13,441,600 699,360 11,222,000 699,360

Hang Seng Bank Ltd. BERTERAA 11 17,323,215 1,232,840 16,507,364 960,890

Sun Hung Kai Properties Ltd. MEENESRERAR 16 22,693,600 1,140,000 25,672,800 1,504,800

CK Asset Holdings Ltd. RIEZEEBERAA 1113 18,437,817 1,161,756 22,657,130 1,317,813

184,040,147 12,025925 178,180,689 10,803,633

Financial assets at fair value through profit 13 ZAABEFABZZEME
or loss =3
2024 2023
$ $
Listed fund investments, at fair value: ITHESKRE  BAAEE
Hong Kong a5 318,314,990 270,080,685
The above investments were classified as financial assets TR EE S BARAABENABR L
at fair value through profit or loss as the Board has not SRMEE RAARESZEQUWLAERE
elected to recognise the fair value gain or loss through other REMEZEKNEERAALBEKEHE
comprehensive income. B e

MERNEFRHEESESS 20245588
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14 Accounts receivable

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
81 55 6 2% B 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (AW 7T3I7R)

14 FEUWARX

2024 2023

$ $

Accounts receivable FEUER SR 47,962,068 21,203,472
Less: provision for loss allowance L ETE R (6,130,426) (2,207,832)
41,831,642 18,995,640

The credit period is 30 days. The Board seeks to maintain
strict control over its outstanding receivables and has
developed credit control policy to minimise credit risk.
Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. The Board does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements over these balances. Accounts
receivable are non-interest-bearing.

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of
accounts receivable are as follows:

EEHRIOR - E2Z B EARES
HARBERYEFR - WE HIEFEEEHEE
N EERRERERE SRELETH
ERBSEYG  EeRESUBERZETE
S AT EARREMINREEREE -
FEWERRTETE

YR 2B EBREEEEHIT

2024 2023

$ $

At 1 January M1A1H 2,207,832 2,189,685
Impairment losses recognised (note 6) BB EE R (5T6) 3,922,594 18,147
At 31 December MK12A31H 6,130,426 2,207,832

The Board measures loss allowances for accounts receivable
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated
using a provision matrix. The Board measures loss allowance
on financial assets based on the past loss experience,
existing market conditions as well as forward-looking
information at the end of each reporting period.

Pneumoconiosis Compensation Fund Board Annual Report 2024
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Set out below is the information about the credit risk
exposure on the Board’s accounts receivable using a

provision matrix:

Bl 55 %6 2% Bl 51

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (JAM7T3II7R)

TXE#HIFBREEESLEESZE SR
WK P B 2 E B R A

As at 31 December 2024 M2024912A31H
Past due
g
Less than 3 months
Current 3 months to 1year Over 1 year Total
e PHR3EA  3@ERAELE 10k #ct
Expected credit loss rate BHEEREX 0% 0%* 0.9% 100.0% 12.8%
Gross carrying amount (HK$) REAEGET) 38,105,257 1,674,875 2,075,866 6,106,070 47,962,068
Expected credit losses (HKS) BHEEBE(ET) - 5,827 18,529 6,106,070 6,130,426
As at 31 December 2023 R2023F12H31H
Past due
B
Lessthan 3 months
Current 3 months to1year Over1year Total
08 OR3ER  EAZELE 1§50 E Mgt
Expected credit loss rate HEEEBEX 0% 0%* 0.6% 100.0% 10.4%
Gross carrying amount (HK$) REBEGET) 18,632,876 319,402 43,632 2,207,562 21,203,472
Expected credit losses (HK$) HHEEBEET) - 6 264 2,207,562 2,207,832
* The amount represents percentage greater than zero. * ZEERTADLERARE -

At the end of the reporting period, the Board had certain

RBEHR  EeZE@ERETEES

concentrations of credit risk as 8% (2023: 7%) and 23%
(2023: 27%) of the Board’s accounts receivable were due
from the Board’s largest debtor and five largest debtors,
respectively.

mER RRAESZEFEWERESR
8% (20234 : 7%) }k23%(2023%F : 27%)
DAEREEREGZHRRNEBARAKR
BEIEA o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
81 55 6 2% B 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A TTHIIR)

15 Time deposits with original maturity of more 15 REBB=#A R —F&R TN
than three months and one year 2 & 817K

2024 2023
$ $

Time deposits with original maturity of more RFEiBiE=107 K% —F%5/H
than three months and one year ZEHTER 2,793,239,900 2,616,368,077
Less: portion classified as non-current assets & : p¥AFERBEEHHD (900,075,762) (800,075,762)

Portion classified as current assets DERARBEEZHD 1,893,164,138 1,816,292,315
As at 31 December 2024, the effective interest rate on time HR2024F12A318  RE@BB=A X
deposits with original maturity of more than three months —ERINPIEFHERCERENER
and one year was 3.89% (2023: 3.61%) per annum. These 3.89%(2023%F : 3.61%) ° ZFFH2F
deposits have an average maturity of 311 days (2023: 435 HEIEAA R311K (20234 : 435K) °
days).
16 Cash and cash equivalents 16 AERRESEEY
2024 2023
$ $
Cash and bank balances Be RIRTTHE 8,495,569 19,863,219
Time deposits TEBFER 2,793,239,900 2,616,368,077

2,801,735,469 2,636,231,296
Less: Time deposits with original maturity of & : REBE=1E7 & —F%

more than three months and one EH 2 EEITERR
year (note 15) (BF5E15) (2,793,239,900) (2,616,368,077)
Cash and cash equivalents HeRBELEEY 8,495,569 19,863,219
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Accruals and other payables

Bl 55 %6 2% Bl 51

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A TTHIIR)

17 BETRIEREMENKE

2024 2023

$ $

Accruals FEET A 7,383,090 8,884,779
Other payables HAth FETFRIE - 29,883
Provision for unutilised annual leave FIE R F B EE 781,940 648,998
8,165,030 9,563,660

Provision for long service payments

18 RHEIBRBEEHE

2024 2023

$ $

At 1 January ©®1A1H 697,738 115,015
Movement during the year (note 5) FNEB) (D) (2,816) 582,723
At 31 December ®12A31H 694,922 697,738

The provision for long service payments is based on the best
estimate of the probable future payments which have been
earned by the Board’s employees from their service to the
Board to the end of the reporting period less any amount
that would be expected to be met by the vested benefits in
the retirement benefit scheme at the end of the reporting
period.

RHRBEREDIREHESZEGREE
BERSHRAESZESRHRBEME
FREXA] LS RAS R OB FE AR R AR IR
KRN PR EENN 2 EM2R)F
HZ REMEFTEGH
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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e

i 3

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

)]

Research fund
A research fund has been set aside to finance ongoing
research projects.

Prevention fund

A prevention fund has been set aside to finance education
and publicity programs aiming at reminding workers and
their families to the occupational hazard, and stressing the
importance of prevention.

Rehabilitation fund

A rehabilitation fund has been set aside to finance
rehabilitation programs which provide holistic rehabilitation
care to patients.

Computer systems fund
A computer systems fund has been set aside to finance
development for various systems.

Capital reserve

A capital reserve has been set aside to finance the acquisition
of property, plant and equipment and depreciation charged is
compensated by a transfer from this reserve each year.

Investment reserve

Investment reserve represents the accumulated net change
in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

=
o
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(d)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

ABTTIIR)

20 Notes to the statement of cash flows 20 RERERMTE
Reconciliation of surplus for the year to cash eFERMRESEMELARESZ
generated from operations AR

Notes 2024 2023
M5 $ $
Surplus for the year EFERAHR 276,051,249 184,100,812
Adjustments for: BT5IBE ER AR
Depreciation e 9 739,878 791,039
Amortisation of intangible assets A E 10 61,901 188,729
Impairment loss on accounts FEURBR SR (E 518
receivable 14 3,922,594 18,147
Interest income FEUWA (108,752,785)  (95,017,072)
Dividend income f& B A (24,123,781) (21,016,108)
Fair value (gain)/loss on equity BAREEFABREZ
investments at fair value through BAKE 2 AR EE
profit or loss (Uzk),/ B 1R (48,234,305) 42,892,395
99,664,751 111,957,942
Increase in accounts receivable JiE Wi BR SR N (26,758,596) (3,522,302)
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments  FE{TFIE Rig4 (&)~
and deposits L (136,801) 18,120
Decrease in advance payment for EXmESR D
compensation - 125,088
Decrease in accruals and other JE T RIE R HoAth B FRIE
payables Ve (1,398,630) (8,552,011)
(Decrease)/increase in provision for  REIRESBECHL)
long service payments 0 (2,816) 582,723
Cash generated from operations EEEECZRS 71,367,908 100,609,560

21

Contingent liabilities

At the end of the reporting period, the Board was
contingently liable for compensations payable on 58 (2023:
29) re-assessment applications under the Pneumoconiosis
and Mesothelioma (Compensation) Ordinance which have
not yet been approved by the Pneumoconiosis Medical
Board. In the opinion of the Board members, the financial
effect of the re-assessment applications cannot be reliably

measured.

Pneumoconiosis Compensation Fund Board Annual Report 2024
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Financial instruments by category

The financial assets of the Board comprise (i) financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss which are
categorised as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss — mandatorily designated as such; (ii)
equity investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income which are categorised as financial
assets at fair value through other comprehensive income;
and (iii) accounts receivable, interest receivables, deposits,
debt investments at amortised cost, time deposits with
original maturity of more than three months and one year
and cash and cash equivalents, which are categorised as
financial assets at amortised cost. The carrying amount
of deposits is HK$191,354 (2023: HK$45,553). The
carrying amounts of other financial assets are shown on the
statement of financial position.

The financial liability of the Board comprise financial
liabilities included in accruals and other payables
categorised as financial liabilities at amortised cost.
The carrying amount of financial liabilities included in
accruals and other payables is HK$7,383,090 (2023:
HK$8,914,662).

Fair value and fair value hierarchy of
financial instruments

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts
of the Board’s financial assets and financial liability
approximated to their fair values.

The fair values of the financial assets and liability are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

Management has assessed that the fair values of accounts
receivable, interest receivables, deposits, the current
portion of an unlisted bond included in debt investments
at amortised cost, the current portion of time deposits with
original maturity of more than three months and one year
and cash and cash equivalents approximate to their carrying
amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these
instruments.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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The fair value of the non-current portion of time deposits
with original maturity of more than three months and
unlisted bond included in debt investments at amortised
cost has been calculated by discounting the expected future
cash flows using rates currently available for instrument with
similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. At the
end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts of these
financial assets approximated to their fair values because
the effect of discounting is not material.

The fair values of listed equity and fund investments are
based on quoted market prices.

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement
hierarchy of the Board’s financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value

As at 31 December 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
81 55 6 2% B 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (AW 7T3I7R)

BEHERAHBZEBRREPREBBE=
BEARINBZERFFARIFELTESFZ
FRBED 2 RAEETIEBHFAIRK
REenTRstEGL - AAFREAAS
BEER - FERRERSBTFH2TAR
BRIAZLLE - RIEHR  ZemEE
MEEEEREAABEGRERTEDN
FEITEK o

EABRARESREZ AREEHETS
HEFH -

TEREMAESREGZEMTARAAEE
2

MR2024F12H31H

Fair value measurement using
RRAATEAMEZ R AEENE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

B EAUBE EATUEE

HEHE BARE aARE

(E-B) (E=R =8 @it
$ $ $ $
Equity investments designated at fair value through other EERAABEGAENEE
comprehensive income Wi B E 184,040,147 - - 184,040,147
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss BROABEHNERZER
EE 318,314,990 - - 318,314,990
502,355,137 - - 502,355,137

Pneumoconiosis Compensation Fund Board Annual Report 2024
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (JAM7T3II7R)

As at 31 December 2023 R2023F 12 A31H

Fair value measurement using

EANTHAREZAAEBENE

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable  unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

ER EXTEE EXTUEE

THHE BAE BAYE

(E-8) (E=R) (E=R) @t
$ $ $ $
Equity investments designated at fair value through other 3EFRALBEFALMZE
comprehensive income Wi 7 AR E 178,180,689 - - 178,180,689
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss BROABENNERZ SR
BE 270,080,685 - - 270,080,685
448,261,374 - - 448261374
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value ERN-REHREEMS  F-RAEE_R
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers ZEWEARBEGEEE - TEE AL
into or out of Level 3 for financial assets (2023: Nil). #HEZH(20234F « ) o
Liabilities measured at fair value BAREBENEZARG
The Board did not have any financial liability measured at R2024F12A31H K%2023F12/831H -
fair value as at 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023. EeZERWBEMNRAABEITEZH
BaE -

MERNEFRHEESESS 20245588
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (AW 7T3I7R)

24 Financial risk management objectives and 24 HEREREEREEFERBUER

66

policies

The main risks arising from the Board’s financial instruments
are credit risk, liquidity risk, equity and fund price risk and
interest rate risk. The Board reviews and agrees policies
for managing each of these risks and they are summarised
below.

Credit risk of the Board is primarily attributable to accounts
receivable, debt investments at amortised cost, time
deposits with original maturity of more than three months
and one year and cash and bank balances.

The Board has policies in place for the control and
monitoring of its credit risk arising from uncollected levy
income. The credit risk on debt investments at amortised
cost, time deposits with original maturity of more than three
months and one year and cash and bank balances is limited
because the counterparties are corporations and banks
with high credit ratings assigned by international credit-
rating agencies. Accordingly, the Board members are of
the opinion that the Board’s activities are not exposed to
significant credit risk.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Board’s exposure
to credit risk arising from accounts receivable are disclosed
in note 14 to the financial statements.

With respect to credit risk arising from the other financial
assets of the Board, which comprise interest receivables,
deposits, debt investments at amortised cost, time deposits
with original maturity of more than three months and one
year and cash and cash equivalents, arises from default of
the counterparty, the Board’s exposure to credit risk arises
from default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure
equal to the carrying amounts of these instruments. These
financial assets of the Board are classified within stage 1 for
measurements of ECLs.

EeZBgvemIAMELE 2T 2RAR
REERR RBEEER BRARESD
ERERARNERER - EERERRZ
BRAESZEEFM - W T -

EeZBEe@ZEFRERARIERABUER
R REBEKATEZEBRE  RER
B=EAR—FRIBPZEREFTIALS
& RIRTTHERR

ESZBRCHERR - BEEARERE
BRmER 2 EERR - ERIREHKA
AEZEBRE  REBE=EAR—F
BB 2 FEBRFRARIRE RIRITAERR
HRRZEFREBRFIRRBLETSE
B Rz #BRRT BUEERRSE
BeRAih ZR2ZERZEBRA £EEZ%
BexmkzFERRY TERX

FHESZ B eMHEERE BRI 2E
SRR zE-FECEE  RUBHRKRN
1495z -

ENKREESZERHMEREE(BER
WHIE e REBHRAGEZEBR
B REBB=AN-FERINHNZEH
FRARRE KRB EBY 2 EERR
Ao ZBefAkRZEERRIIRARS
HFED MEARBRBEASRZETLA
ZEHEE E2ZBeRZEFeREES
AEHEEBEAEE —BERA -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining
sufficient cash and bank balances. The Board, through its
Committee on Finance and Administration, has adopted a
prudent investment and treasury strategy so as to ensure
that it maintains sufficient cash to meet its liquidity
requirements.

The maturity profile of the Board’s financial liability as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments, was less than one year or repayable
on demand.

Equity and fund price risk is the risk that the fair values of
equity and fund investments decrease as a result of changes
in the levels of equity indices and the value of underlying
individual securities. The Board is exposed to equity and
fund price risk arising from its equity investments designated
at fair value through other comprehensive income (note 12)
and financial investments at fair value through profit or loss
(note 13) as at 31 December 2024. The Board’s listed equity
and fund investments are listed on the Hong Kong stock
exchange and are valued at closing prices at the end of the
reporting period.

The market equity index for the Hong Kong stock exchange,
at the close of nearest business trading day of the end of
the reporting period, and its respective highest and lowest
points during the year were as follows:

31 December
2024 2024 2023 2023

20245 20245 2023% 20235
12A31R EL Y 12A31R

Bif 5 ¥k 2% Bfil 53

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (JAM7T3II7R)

HEZRBHECRARERERFERHR
ERBITHEG - ESZEECBEBE Y
BROIBZESRMES 2 REREB R
B UHRRERARSENERDESS

REGORTENFIILZESZBEH
BRERBRERR 2R RBIR—F
HIRBKER -

%m&ﬁééfﬁffﬁﬂﬁ’*%HﬁK&%%&’éz
D IEEE B A B EOK F I 48 B 18 Bl &

BEDRESM N2 Rk - K2024F12
A318 E&ZEBeEBKRAETIEAR
BETAEMEZE RS ZBRAIRE (T
12)RIBEAREBEFAEBRZ S BIZE (H
HFIZHRARECERAR - E£ %8
G ETRARESRENEBHRA £
o WIERRERRZ KW EHE -

EREOBRERAR XS ALEERRER
RABHMIMZBEMSEBREFAR
SR R

High/low 31 December High/low

BE/EH

Hong Kong — Hang Seng Index BE-EEEY

20,060 23,242/14,794

17,047 22,701/15,972
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bl 55 ¥k 2= Bl 51

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (AW 7T3I7R)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to changes
in the fair values of the equity and fund investments
assuming a 5% change in fair values of the underlying
instruments with all other variables held constant and before
any impact on tax, based on their carrying amounts at the
end of the reporting period. For the purpose of this analysis,
for the financial investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income, the impact is deemed to be on the
fair value reserve.

TREREARESKREABRRABELA
ZARBELBRSRESMEMAERESH
FIAZ2BERFATARBEEZBERLT
REERHERARZEAE  BRAAEE
BYIYRE - MADMME - YRR
REBEFAHEMEZEREZEREE  F

EEZ

WEASHAAEBERBIFE -

Carrying Change in Change in
amount of surplus funds and
investments for the year reserves*
K& =FERR EoRf#E
BREE 285 2 BB
$ $ $
2024 2024%F
Investments listed in Hong REBZ ETHRE :
Kong:
Equity investments designated TR ARBESAEME
at fair value through other Hilas 2 BRI E
comprehensive income 184,040,147 - 9,202,007
Financial investments at fair BRAREEFABEZ SR
value through profit or loss =& 318,314,990 15,915,750 -
2023 20234
Investments listed in Hong REBZ EHIEE :
Kong:
Equity investments designated 3T ARBESAEME
at fair value through other il 2 BRI E
comprehensive income 178,180,689 - 8,909,034
Financial investments at fair BARBEFABRZ SR
value through profit or loss =& 270,080,685 13,504,034 -
* Excluding accumulated fund * Wk 2BEES

Pneumoconiosis Compensation Fund Board Annual Report 2024
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Interest rate risk

The Board is exposed to interest rate risk through the
impact of rate changes on interest-bearing financial assets.
The value of financial instruments will fluctuate due to
changes in market interest rates. Bank balances, including
time deposits with original maturity of more than three
months and one year, earn interest at floating rates based
on daily bank deposits rates. Assuming the amount of bank
balances, including time deposits, outstanding at the end
of the reporting period was outstanding for the whole year,
a 100 basis-point increase/decrease in interest rates at 31
December 2024 and 2023 would have increased/decreased
the Board’s surplus for the year by HK$28,017,000 and
HK$26,362,000, respectively. There is no impact on funds
and reserves except for accumulated fund.

Capital management

The primary objective of the Board’s capital management
is to safeguard the Board’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to have sufficient funding for future operations.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or
processes for managing capital during the years ended 31
December 2024 and 31 December 2023.

Capital of the Board comprises its funds and reserves.

Approval of the financial statements

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the Board on 23 June 2025.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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NUMBER OF CONFIRMED NEW CASES IN THE PAST TEN YEARS:
RAOTHFHAEZHEARET

Total # 2*: 830 (43) [134]

12 103
__________________________________ A N A
93
'e 21 17 90
19 8
B {0 W R e LR 5 BT AN A0 e B EE e Ee
72 1
69 1 68 :
10
13 16 9
| RN - BR-B-B BB B B
54 5 2
7
4
20 - - B B B B B B B B B
56 W43 54 59 QM52 88 67 79 78 HM79
20 -®-B- B B B B B B B ¥

Silicosis cases

B b s {Ez

Asbestosis & Mesothelioma case

ARRILER & EE R Az

Asbestosis cases Mesothelioma cases

AR EREZE LEEAEES

Average Percentage of cases having employment record in the construction/quarry industry
¥ ERTEEEXSIABEZCIAGES L

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
85 90 9l 83 83 84 86 76 78 89 89

Figure in parentheses () represents number of Asbestosis cases and figure in brackets [ ] represents number of
Mesothelioma cases included in the total.
ORNBFRERBHEFERTEREEZAE  MIINBEFRIRERAHFREEBEEE AR -

s

One patient in 2019 and 2021 respectively were determined to be suffering from both Asbestosis and Mesothelioma.

R NERCTF - FRE - EREREDARBELRNERRERE

Pneumoconiosis Compensation Fund Board Annual Report 2024
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ANALYSIS OF PNEUMOCONIOSIS AND MESOTHELIOMA CASES NEWLY

CONFIRMED IN 2024

"R NERERAE ZMERTE R R EREERED

@ 50-59 A+ER IR
@ 60-69 N TEATAE
® 7079 tt+EEHIE
@ 30 and above N+ RIA

. Employed

B

. Unemployed/retired
REBRIN

Table 1: Age/Average Degree of Incapacity (DOI) Analysis
B&— Fie THREIIERNIZESG

Age group Number of cases Average age Average DOI (%)
T’ A TIERE D

FHERAER BAAE FHFR RERD R

50-59 6 0) [l 56 37

A+ER TR

60-69 45 Q) [3] 65 17

NTERTIR

70-79 32 (2) 3] 73 14

t+EET IR

80 and above 7 (1) 1] 84 33

Nt+sr KA &

Total 20 (3) 8] 69 18

my

Total number has included 4 fatal cases, the degree of incapacity of
whom has not been determined.

fORBBREARRERERRTFENIEE ZISLTESR -

Table 2: Patients” Employment Status at Time of First
Registration
B&XR= WABRELRIBEER

Employment status Number of cases Percentage
BERER BAAY it =
Employed 21 0) [2] 23.3
B

Unemployed/retired 69 (3) 6] 76.7
KE/BERK

Total 90 (3) I8l 100.0
my

Figures in parentheses () represent numbers of Asbestosis cases and
brackets [ 1 represent numbers of Mesothelioma cases included in the total.
ORNBFRERBEPARTERBEZAZ - Ml IABFRAEREEF
FRBEEZ AN -

MERNEFRHEESER ST 2024F )
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Table 3: Employment History of Pneumoconiosis and Mesothelioma Cases Newly
Confirmed in 2024

Bx= —TZOEFRNEARAEZMEBRNERMERBREBREZ LIFLE

Length of employment

REBITERE

Industry Below 10 years 10 years or above Total
feB1T% TEUT TERIUL my
Construction Only 1 (0) [0l 32 (1) [0] 33 (1) [0]
RygEx—18
Construction & Quarry 0 (0) [0] 1 (0) [0] 1 (0) 0]
BEENAOEE
Construction & Quarry and others 1 (1) [0] 45 (0) [3] 46 (1) I3]
BIEE  AEENEMITE
Sub-total 2 (1) [0l 78 (1) [3] 80 (2) [3]
FE/NH
Other industries
HAhiT%
Jade/gem stone polishing 0 (0) (0] 3 (0) [0] 3 (0) 101
=P -C=}. 5
Machine repairing/metal work 0 (0) 101 1 (0) [1I 1 0) [
WIS IR T12
Others 1 (0) [0] 5 (1) 14l 6 (1) 1[4
At
Sub-total 1 (0) [0] 9 (1) [5] 10 (1) [5]
FIENF
Total 3 (1) [o1 87 (2) I8] 90 (3) I[8I
me
Notes:

— Figures in parentheses () represent numbers of Asbestosis cases and brackets [ 1 represent numbers of Mesothelioma
cases included in the total.

— Among the 90 cases under study, 80 (88.9%) have worked in the construction and/or the quarry industries. Only 10 (11.1%)
have had employment connection with neither the construction nor quarry industry.

‘;:I‘ .

- ORBFRAEREEBTARIEREEZAZ MIARFASBREBTEALBEE AR -
HE0RBAED - BOA(B8.9%) BIRMERER HAWETE - EI0A1LIRRRNBEX K ATEETIE -
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ANALYSIS OF PAYMENTS MADE UNDER THE PNEUMOCONIOSIS AND
MESOTHELIOMA (COMPENSATION) ORDINANCE AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2024
REZB-ZNE+ZA=+— B GTERTE R R ERE (FHE) &E) MEX E 27

® 520

® 2540
@ 560
@ 550
@ 55100

® 520

® 2540
@ 560
@ 550
@ 35100

Table 1: Analysis of Latest Payments Made to the “Old
case”* Pneumoconiosis Patients
BXR— [EEXRIBAZTESZEABHESEDN

Degree of incapacity Total Average
assessed in latest amount of compensation
assessment/ Number of monthly payment per
re-assessment (%) case(s) payment  month per case
BHEHCEATHE BAWE BABALY
EHIRERS X BAAE wx EEzHEDE

$ ($)
5-20 61 365,550 5,993
25-40 35 340,460 9,727
45-60 9 134,000 14,889
65-80 2 48,900 24,450
85-100 4 99,430 24,858
Total 111 988,340 8,904
my

In addition, “Compensation for Care and Attention” is payable to 3 cases at $5,930
per case per month.
ﬁ3%rAT§E9|\AEHXlH AFANB=tmz[#IERREFEAIRE] -
“Old case” includes those patients who have received a lump-sum
compensation before the ordinance amended in 1993.

o [ERERIBI993FAGIE KA R EM — B I HENBAMESR -

Table 2: Analysis of Latest Payments Made to the “New
case”* Pneumoconiosis and Mesothelioma Patients
BXR=— [FERI*RARNESZSFAMBESEIN

Degree of incapacity Total Average
assessed in latest amount of compensation
assessment/ Number of monthly payment per
re-assessment (%) case(s) payment  month per case
BHEBHAZRATHE SRAwHHE BABATY
EIBERSX BAAE BXE ERzWESH

$) $
5-20 1029 9,107,590 8,851
25-40 140 2,267,640 16,197
45-60 54 1,207,410 22,359
65-80 24 710,210 29,592
85-100 12 487,510 40,626
Total 1259 13,780,360 10,945
my

In addition, “Compensation for Care and Attention” is payable to 17 cases at $5,930

per case per month.

Bl7ERATBIINENBARTNE =Tz [ RBEFEAME]

# “New case” includes those patients who have not received any lump-
sum compensation before.

o [HER]IBTERER —FEBIMENBARERE

MERNEFHEESESE 2024558
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Compensation item Expenses Expenses Total Expenses
incurred from  incurred from incurred from
1Janto lJanto 9Jul1993to
31 Dec 2024 31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2024
WiER —hA=#E
—E-NE —E-= tAABRE
—HA—B=% —H—HZ —E-NE
+=A=+—-8 +t=A=+—-8 +=A=+—8
ZX Z X ZXHBE
$ $ $
Compensation for death resulting from
Pneumoconiosis and Mesothelioma (or both) 41,714,337 29,424,238 629,482,366
i BB 3R )T & 5 o P 2 988 (SR &)
SIBE TR HE
Compensation for bereavement 1,405,730 1,737,360 22,279,086
PEETCZEN@EE
Monthly compensation for incapacity, pain,
suffering and loss of amenities 181,108,342 173,427,258 4,103,216,191
LARTERES - R - e BEAEFLEENT AE
Compensation for incapacity prior to date of diagnosis 4,047,380 4,374,539 66,747,759
FI1E B HART e 2k THERE W wiE
Compensation for care and attention 1,539,997 830,100 21,791,533
IR K AR T E RS
Funeral expenses 6,440,330 6,534,363 93,253,450
BIRE
Medical expenses 4,741,246 3,905,841 52,291,710
Expenses for medical appliances 1,349,131 976,498 29,850,151
EREBEER
Less: Reversal of provision - (228,430) (2,439,774)
R BRI
Total 242,346,493 220,981,767 5,016,472,472




APPENDIX IV
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PROFILE OF ALL CASES RECEIVING COMPENSATION AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2024
REZBZOFE+ A=+ - BB EEENFEEBAZETER

@ 60-69 AT ENT
O 7079 £+ ELT B
@ 30andabove N\t RIA L

@ 3039 =tE=1TIK
@ 049 mt+EmTAR
@ 5059 B HER TR
@ 60-69 <+ E=R TR
O 7079 t+E++hE
@ 30 and above N+ R E

Table 1: Profile of the “Old Case” Pneumoconiosis Patients

Bx— [ERERXIBAZFTER
Average
degree of
Age group Number of cases Average age incapacity (%)
FHE L TERED
FHa R BAAE FHEFR REBSE
60-69 4 66 9
NTERTNR
70-79 52 75 30
T+ EET AR
80 and above 55 85 23
N+ R £
Total 111 79 25
my

Table 2: Profile of the “New Case” Pneumoconiosis and
Mesothelioma Patients

xZ [FERIEAZSETER
Average
degree of
Age group Number of cases Average age incapacity (%)
FHE LIRS
Fieian BmAANE FHEFR BRERSE
30-39
=+E=TNR 1 [1] 34 100
40-49
O+ ZE=mM+ 5% 3 [3] 46 40
50-59
AtTZERA TR 20 (2] 56 18
60-69
ANTERTAR 428 [9] 66 16
70-79
t+EETIR 612 [8] 74 15
80 and above
NTERIA L 195 (4] 85 18
Total 1259 [27] 73 16
mny
Note:

Figures in brackets [ ] represent numbers of Mesothelioma cases included in the
total.

T
(TN FRERERFRRBEEE 2 AE -

MERNEFRHEESER ST 2024F )
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APPENDIX V

i £

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

ABTTIIR)

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

RERERE
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
—ENE —EC=F —EC-CF —E--f —ECEF
($'000)
Income LON
Levies B 441,306 420,962 395,378 365,137 358,404
Interest 8 110,254 95,017 30,163 17,609 47,363
Others Hip A 25,450* 21,507 16,477 14,916 15,149
Fair value gain/(loss) on NWAREBEAREREE
financial assets ZRAREENE
(Tracker Fund) (B18)(B=E%) 48,234 (42,892) (28,940) (44,180) 1,466
Total income FEEON 625,244 494,594 413,078 353,482 422,382
Expenditure X
Compensations T 242,346 220,982 220,518 226,473 209,100
Project expenses EEFY 69,624 61,688 59,607 54,083 39,671
Staff, administrative and BE  THEAK
other expenses Hipf% 34,349 26,026 26,385 27,241 27,423
Depreciation/Amortisation WE/ i 802 980 1,043 929 1,344
Capital expenditure BEAMY 2,072 817 565 746 698
Total expenditure @Yy 349,193 310,493 308,118 309,472 278,236
Surplus for the year EFRAHK 276,051 184,101 104,960 44,010 144,146
Transfer from capital reserve mEAREERE 802 980 1,043 929 1,344
Accumulated fund brought FFEEER
forward 3,240,001 3,048,138 2,931,279 2,882,502 2,730,280
3,616,854 3,233,219 3,037,282 2,927,441 2,875,770
Transfer to project funds/ BAESES
computer systems fund/ ERERES
capital reserve/investment BARE/
reserve RERE (78,712) (61,954) (59,917) (54,853) (40,176)
Transfer from project funds to RIEEE SR IR
compensate project expenses A 79,678 68,736 70,773 58,691 46,908
Accumulated fund carried BTFECREES
forward 3,617,820 3,240,001 3,048,138 2,931,279 2,882,502

received of $90,142 and penalty of $1,236,199 on late payments of levies.
* Hi WA BERFE EMEFMERE24,123,781T - REFEESFTWE 2 THER90,142 7T K FBHEFATUER 2

£1301,236,1997T °

Pneumoconiosis Compensation Fund Board Annual Report 2024

Others include dividend income from listed securities amounting to $24,123,781, Ex-gratia fund administration charge
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